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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Dear Shareholders, 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
5 th Annual Report 2023-24 

Your directors take great pleasure in presenting the Fifth Annual Report along with the 
audited financial statements for FY2024. 

Company Overview and Operations 

Your Company is health-tech venture that aims to transform the healthcare sector in 
India. It offers a range of healthcare solutions and services. The mission is to provide 
platforms for customers to manage their healthcare needs 360°, covering wellness, 
inpatient (IPD) and outpatient (OPD) services. 

Company seeks to a) connect providers of healthcare such as hospitals, doctors, labs 
etc. with consumers of healthcare, and b) provide healthcare and claims management 
services to payers of healthcare expenditure such as insurance companies, employers 
and government, through an efficient digital platform. 

Company has built a network of over 100,000 doctors, more than 5,000 diagnostic 
points and over 2,000 hospitals where outpatient (OP) transactions can be done on 
cashless basis. Over 45 lakh OPD health transactions have been processed and fulfilled 
digitally in FY2024. Company operates primarily through a consumer facing app which 
allows customers to manage their plans, access network of healthcare providers, book 
appointments and store their health records for future reference. Company is also a 
Wave 1 partner of the Digital Health Mission of the National Health Authority (NHA). 

Company will seek to further its presence in the health-tech space through network 
expansion, expanding presence in managed care for employers, provide technology­
based cognitive services including fraud identification and claims management to all 
insurance companies and further build on its wellness platform which includes 
nutritionist, mental health counselling, fitness and other benefits. 

Financial Results 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been 
disclosed as per Schedule Ill to the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act") and IND AS. 

The highlights of the financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 
are given below: 
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(Rs. in lakh) 

Particulars For the year For the year 
ended on ended on 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Total income from operations 62,376.18 18,495.23 

Less: Expenditure excluding depreciation 75,064.25 35,748.41 

Less: Depreciation 2,673.75 1,533.38 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (15,361.82) (18,786.56) 

Less: Provision for Tax- Current - -
Less: Deferred - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (15,361.82) (18,786.56) 

Other comprehensive income for the year (95.70) 200.75 
(net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for (15.457.52) (18,585.81) 
the year 

Dividend and transfer to reserves 

Considering the operating and accumulated losses. no dividend is being recommended. 
nor any amount is proposed for transfer to reserves. 

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures 

The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or a joint venture company. 
Accordingly, the requirement of attaching form AOC-1 is not applicable to the Company. 

Acquisition of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Ltd. 

During FY2024, Company entered into a share purchase agreement for acquisition of 
100% equity stake in Vidal Healthcare Services Private Ltd. ('VHC') at an enterprise value 
of Rs. 325 crore. The acquisition of VHC has been completed in April 2024. Vidal Health 
Insurance TPA Private Ltd. and VH Medcare Private Ltd .. two whol ly owned subsidiaries 
of VHC. have in turn become indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. 
Company has indirectly acquired -21.3% equity stake in lntentHealth Technologies 
Private Ltd .. which is an associate of VHC. 

The acquisition of VHC significantly expands capabilities of the Company in the 
healthcare space. empowering it to service consumer needs for hospitalisation. 

Material Changes and Commitments 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and the date of this Report. 
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Risk Management 

Company is in process of putting risk management framework for identification. 
measurement. monitoring and control of the risks. The Board is of the opinion that 
there are no elements of risk that may threaten the existence of the Company. 

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls 

The Company has in place adequate internal financia l controls commensurate with its 
size. scale and complexity of operations with reference to its financial statements. 
These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding recording and 
providing reliable financial information. ensuring integrity in conducting business. 
accuracy and completeness in maintaining accounting records and prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors. The Board reviewed the said controls and found them in 
order. 

Board of Directors 

The composition of Board as on 31 March 2024 was as follows: 

Name of the Director Category 

V Rajagopalan Chairman. Non-Executive director 

Anish Praful Amin Non- Executive director 
Devang Pravin Mody Whole-time Director & CEO 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

The Board comprises of persons with diverse experience and skills. such that it best 
serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company and its stakeholders. 
The present composition broadly meets this objective. 

During the year under review. following changes have taken place in the directorate: 

1. Change in Directorate: 

a) The Board at its meeting held on 29 December 2023. approved and 
recommended the re-appointment of Devang Mody (DIN: 07794726) as whole 
time Director for a second term of three years w.e.f .. 1 January 2024. subject 
to the approval by shareholders at next general meeting. 

b) As per Section 149(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") and Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules. 2014 of every 
public company having a turnover of three hundred crore rupees or more. as on 
the last date of latest audited financial statements. has to mandatorily appoint 
a woman director on the Board. 
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Accordingly, the Board at its meeting held on 23 April 2024, appointed 
Ms. Jasmine Chaney (DIN- 07082359) as an Additional and Independent 
Director of the Company w.e.f. 1 May 2024, subject to the approva l by 
shareholders at ensuing annual general meeting. 

c) Board at its meeting held on 23 April 2024, appointed Rakesh Bhatt 
(DIN: 02531541) as an Additional, Non- Executive, Non-Independent Director of 
the Company w.e.f. 1 May 2024. 

d) Shri V Rajagopalan (DIN: 02997795) resigned as Non - executive Director of the 
Company with effect from 30 April 2024 (close of business hours). 

2. Retirement by rotation: 

Anish Amin (DIN: 00070679), being the director liable to retire by rotation, offers 
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing annual general meeting (AGM). The 
information as required to be disclosed in case of re-appointment of the director 
is provided in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. 

3. Key Managerial Personnel 

Provisions relating to appointment of Key Managerial Personnel are not app licable 
to the Company. 

Number of Meetings of Board 

During the FY2024, the Board of Directors met 6 (six) times, viz., 25 April 2023, 
25 July 2023, 25 October 2023, 29 December 2023, 16 January 2024 and 30 January 
2024. The gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and 
twenty days. 

The details pertaining to the attendance of each Directors at the meetings of the Board 
held during the FY2024 are mentioned below: 

Sr. Name of Director Category No. of Board Meetings 
No. held durinJ:a FY2024 (6) 

Entitled to Attended 
attend 

1. V Rajagopalan Chairman, Non- Executive 6 6 
director 

2. Anish Praful Amin Non- Executive director 6 6 
3. Devang Pravin Mody Whole-time Director & CEO 6 5 

Declaration by Independent Directors 

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration of independence as per 
section 149(6) of Companies Act. 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of 
independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act. 
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They have also confirmed compliance with the provisions of sub-rule (1) and sub-rule 
(2) of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended. relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of independent directors. 

Annual Return 

A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) 
of the Act in the prescribed Form MGT -7 is available on the Company's website and can 
be accessed at https://www.bajajfinservhealth.in/financial-report 

Directors' Responsibility Statement 

In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act 2013, 
Directors state that: 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting 
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 
end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for FY2024; 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were 
operating effectively. 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investment 

During FY2024. the Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or 
securities under section 186 of the Act. 

Details of investments made are a part of notes to financial statements which form part 
of the Annual Report. 
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During FY2024, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
sections 73 and 74 of the Act read together with the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended. 

Share Capital 

During the FY2024, there was no change in the equity share capital of the Company. 

As on 31 March 2024, the authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 50,000,000 
divided into 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- while the paid-up equity 
share capital stood at Rs. 25,000,000 crore comprising of 25,00,000 fully paid equity 
shares of face value of Rs. 10 fully paid-up. 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares, 
convertible securities, shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor 
has it granted any stock options. 

Employee Stock Option Scheme 

Consequent to approval received from the shareholders of Bajaj Finserv Limited, 
holding company of the Company at 11th Annual General Meeting (hereinafter referred 
to as 'AGM') held on 19 July 2018 and approval received from the shareholders of the 
Company at its 3rd extraordinary general meeting held on 15 July 2020, the employees 
of the Company are also covered under Bajaj Finserv Limited Employee Stock Option 
Scheme (BFS-ESOS). 

Related Party Transactions 

All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company with related parties 
during the period under review were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Act including on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the 
Company under the Act. None of the transactions required members' prior approval 
under the Act. 

Details of transactions with related parties during FY2024 are provided in the notes to 
the financial statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 
134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this 
Report. 

Significant and Material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts 

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by any 
Regulators or Courts or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the 
Company and its operations in future. 
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Particulars Regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The information pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in 
terms of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is stated as below: 

(a) Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption 

Though the operations of the Company are not energy-intensive in nature, it 
implements various energy conservation measures across all its functions. 

Considering the nature of operations, no particulars regarding technology 
absorption are required to be given in this Report. 

(b) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The total foreign exchange earnings in FY2024 in terms of actual inflows was NIL 
(FY2023: NIL). 

The total foreign exchange outgo in FY2024 in terms of actual outflows amounted 
to Rs. 85.64 lacs as against Rs. 281.54 lacs during the previous year. 

Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The provisions of section 177 and section 178 of the Act relating to constitution of an Audit 
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to the 
Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Limited 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

The provisions of section 135 of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are 
not applicable to the Company. 

Secretarial standards of ICSI 

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial 
Standards on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings 
(SS- 2) read with the MCA circulars. 

Internal Audit 

Internal audit is an integral part of corporate governance. The objective of internal audit 
is to identify, assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate and contribute to the 
systems of internal controls and governance processes followed by the Company. 
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Key elements of internal audit are assurance on controls, governance and compliance, 
business risk assessment and its mitigation and process optimization. 

The Board periodically reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal controls. Significant audit observations, corrective and 
preventive actions thereon are presented to the Board. 

During FY2024, Vipin Bansal, owing to movement to a leadership position in another 
Company within the Group. resigned as the internal auditor of the Company. 
Consequently, Jayesh Kulkarni, Head of Corporate Audit Services - Bajaj Finserv 
Limited. was appointed as Internal Auditor of the company w.e.f. 25 October 2023. 

Statutory Auditors 

KKC & Associates LLP (FRN 105146W/ W100621) continues to be the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company. They hold office for a period of 4 years upto the 7t h AGM scheduled in 
the year 2025. 

The statutory audit report for the FY2024 does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors. 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel 

Shareholders at their meetings held on 26 April 2024 approved: 
• re-appointment of Shri Devang Mody, Whole time Director & CEO for the 

period of three years up to 31 December 2026. 
• Remuneration in the range of Rs. 700 lakh - 950 lakh per annum, with such 

increment(s) as may be decided by the Board from time to time. In addition, he 
is eligible for the performance incentives as may be decided by the Board. 

For further details refer to the Notice available on the company's website at 
https://www.bajajfinservhealth.in/financial-report. 

Other Statutory Disclosures 

• There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 
• The financial statements of the Company are placed on the Company's website in 

the Annual Report section at https://www.bajajfinservhealth.in/financial-report 
• Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as required under 

sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to your 
Company. 

• There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year against the Company. 

• There was no one-time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial 
institutions in respect of any loan taken by the Company. 

• During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Auditors to 
the Board under section 143(12) of the Act. 

• The Company being an unlisted company, details as required to be reported under 
section 197(12) of the Act, is not applicable to the Company. 
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• Disclosure as required under section 197(14) of the Act for the Managing Director 
or Whole- time Director. for any remuneration or commission from any holding 
company or subsidiary company is not applicable to the Company. 

• The provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Act. are not applicable to the 
Company. According. it was not required to establish any vigil mechanism during 
the year under review. 

• The provisions of section 178 of the Act regarding annual performance eva luation 
are not applicable to the Company. 

• Pursuant to the legislation 'The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention. Prohibition and Redressal) Act. 2013', the Company has a policy on 
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and has constituted an ·internal 
Complaints Committee. No case was reported during the year under review. 

Acknowledgement 

The Board places its gratitude and appreciation for the support and co-operation from 
its members. regulators and business partners. 

The Board also places on record its sincere appreciation for the commitment and hard 
work put in by the Management and the Employees. 

On behalf of Board of Directors of 
Bajaj Finservy h Ltd. 

~~ 
V Rajagopalan 
Chairman 
DIN: 02997795 

Place: Pune 
Date: 23 April 2024 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To 

The Members of 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited ('the Company'), 

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 

Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year 

ended on that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting 

policy information and other explanatory information ('the Financial Statements'). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

2015, as amended, ('Ind AS ') and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the State of 

Affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss, Changes in Equity 

and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SAs') specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements 

under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial 

Statements. 

Other Information 

4. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Company's annual report but does not include the Financial 

Statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made available to 

us after the date of this auditor's report. 

5. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

6. In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
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7. When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 

required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as 

applicable under the relevant laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

8. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with 

respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the State of Affairs, 

Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows of the Company in conformity with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection of the appropriate accounting software for ensuring compliance 

with applicable laws and regulations including those related to retention of audit logs; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 

the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

9. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

10. The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements 

11. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

Financial Statements. 

12. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

12.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 
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12.2. an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

12.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 

12.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

12.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

15. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 'Annexure A' a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

16.1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

16.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 

16.3. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account. 

16.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 

133 of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder. 
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16.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

16.6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in 'Annexure B. 

16.7. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act read with Sch V of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in 

excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

17. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

17.1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

17.2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses. 

17.3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

17.4. The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
('Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

17.5. The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Funding 
Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

17.6. Based on such audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representation under para 17.4 and 17.5 contain any material misstatement. 

17.7. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not 
declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section 123 of the Act by the 

Company is not applicable. 
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17.8. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 

feature being tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, 
reporting under Rule ll(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of 
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2024. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 24164366BKGQBM5425 

Place: Pune 
Date: 23 April 2024 
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Referred to in paragraph 15 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
of even date) 

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details 
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE'). 

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are 
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the programme, certain PPE were physically verified by the Management during the 
year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, it does not hold any the immovable properties (other 
than properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) The Company does not have any inventory, hence physical verification of inventory and reporting 
under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any point of time during the 
year, from banks or financial institutions. 

iii. (a) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the 
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any 
other parties during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d) and 3(ii i)(e) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made 
investments during the year. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made 
are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company has not provided any guarantees, 
securities and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Accordingly, 
provision of clause 3(iii)(b) is not applicable to that extent. 
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(c) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters/Related 
Parties (as defined in section 2(76) of the Act which are either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, or given any guarantee or provided any securities as covered under the provisions 
of sections 185 of the Act. In respect of the investments made by the Company, the provisions of 
sections 186 of the Act have been complied with. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year 
in terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or 
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vi. The Company is not required to maintain cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 and hence reporting under 
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amounts 
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally 
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of 
customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) We confirm that there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 
and any other statutory dues, which have not been deposited to/with the appropriate authority on 
account of any dispute. 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any 
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix. (a) The Company has not borrowed any loans from any lender. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, 
we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority or any other lender. 
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(d) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans 
at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

(e) The Company has not raised any loans on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting 

under clause 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

x. (a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment/ private placement of shares/ fully/ partly 
/ optionally convertible debentures during the year. 

xi. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no 

fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during the 
year. 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub­

section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by the 
Company during the year. 

xii. (a) In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 

Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 

and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under 

audit. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 

with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IAofthe Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without 

obtaining a valid CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) The Company is not a CIC as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 
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(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, in the group (in accordance with Core 
Investment Companies (CIC's) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 17 companies forming part 
of the promoter/promoter group of the Company which are Cl Cs. Further, as informed these CIC's 
are unregistered CICs as per Para 9.1 of Notification No. RBl/2020-21/24 dated 13th August 2020 of 
the Reserve Bank of India. 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. The amount of cash loss incurred in the financial year is Rs. 12,708 Lakhs and in the 

immediately preceding financial year it was Rs. 17,268 lakhs. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly paragraph 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realization offinancial assets and payment offinancial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the provision of section 135 of the Act relating to CSR is not applicable to 
the Company. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

xxi . The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture company and is not required 
to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 24164366BKGQBM5425 

Place: Pune 
Date: 23 April 2024 
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 

(Referred to in paragraph '16.6' under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 

report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv 

Health Limited ('the Company') as at 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 

Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

2. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 

31 March 2024, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('the 

Guidance Note'). 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

3. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include 

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's responsibility 

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note and the Standards on Auditing ('SA '), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. Those SAs 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference 

to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's ·udgement, 
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including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

7. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process designed 

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements include those policies 

and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial 

Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 

the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future periods are subject to 

the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 24164366BKGQBM5425 

Place: Pune 
Date: 23 April 2024 
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Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
for purpose of Bajaj Finserv Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31 , 2024 (~ In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Note For year ended For year ended 

No. March 31 , 2024 March 31, 2023 
Income 
Revenue from operations 

Interest income 16 261.70 17.59 
Fees and commission income 15 37,313.99 4,299.14 
Sale of services 15 24,200.64 13,697.60 
Net gain on fair value changes 204.95 82.82 

Total revenue from operations 61 ,981.28 18,097.15 
Other Income 394.90 398.08 

Total income 62,376.18 18,495.23 
Expenses 

Finance costs 20 251.92 191.87 
Fees and commission expense 19 29,204.57 11,671.70 
Employee benefits expense 17 13,028.31 10,779.50 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 18 2,673 .75 1,533.38 
Other expenses 19 32,579.45 13 105.34 

Total expenses 77,738.00 37,281.79 

Loss before tax (15,361.82) (l 8,786.561 
Tax expense 

Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -

Loss after tax (15,36l .82) (18,786.561 
Other comprehensive Income 

A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (95.70) 200.75 
Income tax relating to above items - -

Total (A) (95.70) 200.75 

Total comprehensive loss ( I 5,457.52) 18,585.81) 
Loss for the year attributable to (15,457.52) (18,585.81) 

Equity holders of the parent - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 
Equity holders of the parent (15,457.52) (18,585.81) 

Earnings per equity share 32 
Basic (INR) (614.47) (751.46) 
Diluted (INR) (614.47) (751.46) 

(Nominal value per share no) 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
CIN - U85320PN2019PLC185286 

~/ ~ ~ 
~ Devang Mody V.Rajagopalan 

Maneesh Sharma Director Director 
Finance Head DIN:07794726 DIN:02997795 
Date - 23.04.2024 Date - 23.04.2024 Date - 23.04.2024 
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Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
for purpose of Bajaj Finserv Limited 
Balance sheet as at Mar 31, 2024 

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
Assets 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 6(e) 7,369.98 2,309.25 
Trade receivables 6(d) 3,815.87 2,060.83 
Investments 
- Others 6(c) 295.90 275.74 

6(a) & 
Other financial assets 6(b)&(f) 669.23 251.43 

Non-Financial Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,042.38 679.46 
Right of use assets 4 3,566.51 1,769.53 
Other intangible assets 5 8,058.83 4,186.64 
Other non-financial assets 8&9 6,502.60 4,903 .68 
Current tax assets (net) 370.89 624.23 

Total Assets 31,692.20 17,060.79 

Liabilities and Eouitv 

Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Trade payables 
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises . 2.06 
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises l l(c) 5,145.65 3,542.47 
Other financial liabilities l l(b) 3,209.13 2,308.42 
Leased liabilities l l(a) 3,557.50 1,785.45 

Non-Financial Liabilities 
Provisions 12& 13 2,644.80 1,827.89 
Other non financial liabilities 14 2, 166.44 668.30 

Total Liabilities 16,723.51 10,134.59 

Equity 
Equity share capital I0(a) 250.00 250.00 
Other equity IO(b) 14,718.69 6,676.20 
Equity attributable to equity holders ofthe parent 14,968.69 6,926.20 

Total Equity 14,968.69 6,926.20 

Total Liabilities and Equity 31,692.20 17,060.79 

On behalfofthe Board of Directors of 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

~'V CIN - U85320PN2019PLC 185286 

~ -~ K • 
DevangMody V .Rajagopalan 

Maneesh Sharma Director Director 
Finance Head DIN:07794726 DIN :02997795 
Date - 23.04.2024 Date - 23.04.2024 Date - 23 .04.2024 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Balance sheet as at Mar 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 

Right of Use Asset 

Other intangible assets 
Financial assets 

i. Other financial assets 

Other non-current assets 

Total non-current assets 
Current assets 
Financial assets 

i. Investments 
ii. Trade receivables 
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 
iv. Other balances with banks 
V. Other financial assets 

Other current assets 
Current tax assets (net) 

Total current assets 
Total assets 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Instruments entirely equity in nature 
Other equity 

Total equity 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 
i. Lease Liabilities 

Employee benefit obligations 

Total non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i. Trade payables 

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

ii. Lease Liabilities 
iii. Other current financial liabilities 
Provisions 

Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total eauitv and liabilities 

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 105146W/WI00621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 
Date- 23 .04.2024 

Note No 

3 
4 

5 

6(a) 

8 

6(c) 
6(d) 

6(e) 

6(t) 
6(b) 

9 

l0(a) 
l0(c) 
l0(b) 

ll(a) 

13 

1 l(c) 

I !(a) 

1 l(b) 

12& 13 
14 

2 

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

1,042.38 679.46 

3,566.51 1,769.53 

8,058.83 4,186.64 

448.54 214.14 

1,541.67 2,459.79 

14,657.93 9,309.55 

295.90 275 .74 
3,815.87 2,060.83 
7,369.98 2,309.25 

175.00 25.00 
45.69 12.30 

4,960.93 2,443.89 
370.89 624.23 

17,034.26 7.751.24 
31 ,692.19 17,060.80 

250.00 250.00 
69,250.00 45,750.00 

(54,531.32) (39,073.79) 

14,968.68 6,926.21 

2,989.07 1,406.41 

63.39 -
3,052.46 1,406.41 

- 2.06 
5,145.65 3,542.47 

568.43 379.04 
3,209.13 2,308.42 
2,581.41 1,827.89 
2,166.44 668.30 

13,671.05 8,728.18 
16,723.51 10,134.59 
31.692.19 17,060.80 

On behalfofthe Board of Directors 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
CJN - U85320PN2019PLC 185286 

Devang Mody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

Maneesh Sharma 
Finance Head 

Date- 23 .04.2024 

.,..~ 
V.R,1jagopalan 
Director 
DIN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total income 
Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Loss before tax 
Income tax expense 

- Current tax 
- Deferred tax 

Total tax expense 
Loss for the year 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 

Basic earnings per share (In INR) 
Diluted earnings per share (In INR) 
(Nominal value per share fNR 10) 

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khirnji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 105146W/Wl00621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 

Date- 23.04.2024 

For year ended For year ended 

Note No March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

15 61,514.63 17,996.74 
16 861.55 498.49 

62,376.18 18,495.23 

17 13,028.31 10,779.50 
20 251.92 191.87 
18 2,673.75 1,533.38 
19 61,784.02 24,777.04 

77,738.00 37,281.79 

(15 361.83) (18 786.56) 

- -
- -
- -

(15 361.83) (18 786.56) 

13 (95.70) 200.75 

(95.70) 200.75 

(15,457.52) (18,585.81) 

(614.47) (751.46) 
(614.47) (751.46) 

2 

On behalfofthe Board of Directors 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
CIN - U85320PN2019PLC185286 

b 
~ 

Devang Mody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

J\4-k. 
Maneesh Sharma 
Finance Head 
Date- 23.04.2024 

V.Rajagopalan 
Director 
DIN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Statement or changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equity share capital 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2022 
Changes in eouitv share caoital 
As at March 31, 2023 
ChanJZes in eouitv share caoital 
As at March JI, 2024 

B. Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Particular~ 
At the beginning of the year 
Addition dul'inJZ the vear 
Closinrz Balance 

•Equity component of loan received represents loan received 
from Bajaj Finserv Limited compulsorily conve11ible into 
equity shares al face value of Rs, IO per share 

C. Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance at March 31,20Z2 
Loss for the year 
Other comorehensive income/(Joss) 
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 

Balance at March 31 2023 
Loss for the year 
Other comorehensive income/Ooss) 

'rota! comnrehensive incom.e/(loss) for the period 
Balance at March 31 , 2024 

Note No 

JO Ca) 

Note No 

IO(c) 

Note No 

JO (b) 

10 (b) 

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part or the financial statements 

No ofshares (In Amount 
lakhs) 

25.00 250.00 

-
25.00 250.00 

-
25.00 250.00 

As at March 31, 2024 As al March 31 2023 
45,750.00 23,750.00 
23,500.00 22,000.00 
69,250.00 45,750.00 

Reserves and surplus Total other equity 

Retained earnings 

(20.487.98) (20.487,98) 
(18,786.56) (18,786,56) 

200,75 200.75 

(39,073.79) (39,073.79) 

(39,073.79 (39,073,79) 
(15,361 83) (15,361 83) 

(95.70) (95.70) 

(54 531.31 154.531.Jll 
154,531.31 (54,531.31) 

On behalfof the Board of Directors 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(fonnerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
ICAI Finn Regislrnlion Number: \05146W/Wl00621 

CtN - U8S3201'N20l9PLC l85286 y 

~ ~~ 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 

Date- 23.04.2024 

Devang Mody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

Maneesh Shanna 
Finance Head 
Date- 23.04.2024 

V Rajagopalan 
Director 
DJN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Statement of cash flows for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Loss before income tax from operations 

Loss before income tax 
Adjustments for 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Chanees in fair value of financial assets at fair value through orofit or loss 
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 
Interest income classified as investing cash flows 
Finance costs 
Provision for doubtful debts 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 
Increase in trade payables 
(Increase) in trade receivables 
(Increase) in other financial assets 
Increase in other financial liabilities 
(Increase) in other assets 
Increase in other liabilities 
Increase in provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Income taxes paid net of refund 
Net cash 2enerated from/ (used in) operating activities 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
Proceeds from property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
Purchase of investments 
Sale of investments 
Interest received on fixed deposits 
Net cash 2enerated from/ ( used in) investing activities 
Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from funds from holding company 
Finance cost paid 
Repayment of lease liabilities 
Net cash l!Cneratcd from/ (used in) linnncing activities 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 
Cash and cash ec1uivalents at end of the ve11r 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 
Cash and cash cauivalcnts as per above comprise of the fo llowing 

Ca h and cash equivalents 
Balances 1>er statement of cash flows 

Summary of material accounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 
As per our report of even date 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: I 05146W /WI 00621 

• • -~ \r-1' 
_t.~~ 
Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 
Date- 23.04 2024 

For year ended For year ended Mar 
March 31. 2024 31,2023 

(15,361.83) (18.786.56) 
(15,361.83) (18,786.56) 

2,673 .75 1,533 .38 
(20.15) (14 ,97) 

(184.79) (67 .85) 
(261.70) (17.59) 

251.92 191.87 
(281.29) (154.00) 

1,601.11 1,189.97 
(1,755.05) (I , 171.40) 

(183 .39) (12 .30) 
825.71 1,304.61 

(1,598 .92) (2,233.38) 
1,498.15 170.69 

849.21 946.74 
(11,883.87) (17,120.79) 

253.34 (540.62' 
(11 ,630.53) (17,661.411 

(6,327.26) (3,408.90) 
. 303.58 
. -
. -

224.60 5.28 
(6,102.66) (3,100.04) 

23,500.00 22,000.00 
(251.92) (191.87) 
(454.17) (337.09) 

22,793.91 21,471.04 
5,060.72 709.58 
2,309.24 1.599.66 
7,369.98 2 309.24 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
l?fl?A 1,11-n 

7,369.98 2,309.25 
7,369.98 2,309.25 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
CIN - U85320PN20 I 9PLC 185286 ':::J 

~ -.,,~ 
Devang Mody V.Rajagopalan 
Director 
DlN:07794726 

Maneesh Shanna 
Finance Head 
Date- 23 .04.2024 

Director 
DIN:02997795 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

1. The Company Overview 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited (the "Company"), is a public company limited by shares, domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company was incorporated on July 05, 
2019. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of 'Bajaj Finserv Limited' (Holding Company). The 
Company is operating in the Health Ecosystem and creates integrated healthcare solutions to improve and 
manage healthcare outcomes with technological intervention. The Company is engaged in business of 
marketing, promoting and selling Healthcare plans/products including preventive healthcare, management of 
illness, loyalty cards, telemedicine, through on line and/or through network of providers / partners. The CIN 
number of the Company is U85320PN2019PLCI 85286. 

The Registered Office of the company is at Bajaj Auto Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune, 411035, 
Maharashtra, and its Corporate Office is at Floor no 40 I, 50 I, 601, Trion IT park, Nagar Road, Vadgaon Sheri, 
Pune-411014, Maharashtra. 

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 23rd April, 
2024. 

In January 2024, Bajaj Finserv Health announced acquisition of 100% stake in Vidal Healthcare Services Pvt. 
Ltd. (VHC) at an enterprise value on 325 crore and completed acquisition during April 2024. VHC is registered 
as a Third-Party Administrator (TPA) with the lRDAI and has vast experience in healthcare administration in 
India. The acquisition of VHC significantly augments capabilities of the company in the healthcare space, 
empowering it to provide services to insurance companies, employers and governments. 

lA Presentation of financial statements 

The Company prepares and presents its Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity in the format prescribed by Division III of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of Cash 
Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. 

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Balance Sheet. 
They are offset and reported net only where it has legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts 
and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously as permitted by Ind AS. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the 
same on a net basis where the netting off reflects the substance of the transaction or other events as permitted 
by Ind AS. 

1 B Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"), the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 a as amended from time to time and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and 
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~), which is also the Company's functional currency, 
and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, rounded off to two decimal points unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Management is satisfied that the Company 
shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a 
wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, 
cash flows and capital resources 



(i) Use of estimates and judgment 

Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures are based upon 
Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements, which 
may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date. Accounting estimates and judgments are used in various 
line items in the financial statements: 

(1) Revenue recognition 
(2) Defined benefit plans and compensated absences 
(3) Useful lives of intangible assets 
(4) Provision for estimate toward expected wellness service claims 

2. Summary of Material accounting policies 

i) Revenue Recognition: 

The Company derives revenue mainly from the following sources: 

Bundled Product 

Bundled Product under the nomenclature of AarogyaCare, Swasthyacare or its variants is a comprehensive 
offering in the Health ecosystem and comprises benefits such as Insurance offered by insurance companies, OPD, 
Laboratory benefit, Loyalty card, access to HealthRx mobile app and website. 

Revenue on product sales are recognized when the customer obtains control of the specified product. 

Revenues are shown net ofGST and cancellation of policies sold if any. 

Insurance component comprised in the product price is not considered in the revenue as it is sold under the 
passthrough arrangement between the Company and the Group's insurance Company. 

Company uses point in time approach to recognize the revenue, since there are no unsatisfied performance 
obligations pending after sale of product. The control of product is immediately transferred to customer at the 
time of sale of product. Company recognizes wellness pay-outs provision on estimate basis. 

Health Prime rider (HPR) 

Health prime rider is a comprehensive offering in the Health ecosystem which is issued by one of the group 
insurance company and comprises benefits such as OPD, Laboratory benefit, Loyalty card, access to HealthRx 
mobile app and website. The Company manages these services on behalf of the insurance company. For above, 
agreement is directly entered with group insurance company. There are two products under this revenue category 
- Retail Health Prime Rider and GMC (Corporate) Health prime Rider. The customer segment for Retail HPR are 
the retail consumers of the group insurance company. The customer segment for GMC are the corporates of that 
insurance company. 

Pursuant to the terms of arrangement with the insurance company the Company's performance obligation is to be 
obliged over the policy period, the revenue & contract liability emanating from the said arrangement are 
recognized over the period of policy contract. 

Service revenue 

Service Revenue under the nomenclature of Health Prime or its variants is a comprehensive offering in the Health 
ecosystem and comprises benefits such as OPD, Laboratory benefit, Loyalty card, wellness benefits, access to 
HealthRx mobile app and website. Revenue on product sales is recognized when the customer obtains control of 
the specified product. Revenues are shown net of GST and cancellation of policies sold if any. Company uses 
point in time approach to recognize the revenue, since there are no unsatisfied performance obligations pending 
after sale of product. The control of product is immediately transferred to customer at the time of sale of product. 
Company recognizes wellness pay-outs provision on estimate basis. 



Co-Branded Card/ Loyalty card 

Cobranded card, Loyalty card or its variants, offer a small ticket size health management solution, en-compassing 
health benefits such as discounts at Outpatient department (OPD), Pharmacy, Laboratory test etc. 

A refund liability is measured for all the products and services at the amount of consideration received (or 
receivable) for which the entity does not expect to be entitled and such amount is deducted from revenue in 
accordance with Ind AS 115. 

The Company assesses the timing of the transfer of services to the customer as compared to the timing of 
payments to determine whether a significant financing component exists. As a practical expedient, the Company 
does not assess the existence of a significant financing component when the difference between payment and 
provision of service is up-to 12 months. If the difference in timing arises for reasons other than the provision of 
finance to either the customer or the Company, no financing component is deemed to exist. 

ii) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Property, 

Plant and Equipment 

(1) Recognition and derecognition 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, consistent with the criteria specified in Ind AS 16 
'Property, Plant and Equipment'. 
Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed 
as "Capital work-in-progress". 

(2) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis on straight line method to allocate the cost, net of residual 
value over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
The Company follows the useful life as provided in Schedule II. 

iii) Intangible Assets and amortization 

Intangible assets, representing softwares are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment. 

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to create, 
produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company. For internally 
developed intangibles, such as software, platforms, applications, expenditure pertaining to research is charged to 
the Statement of profit and loss. 

Expenditure incurred on development of internally generated intangible assets, is recognised as an intangible 
asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable to the use of such know-how are probable to flow 
to the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured reliably. 

The intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of five years, which is the 
Management's estimate of its useful life. 

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets 
under development" . 

iv) Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset ~ 
its fair value including, in the case of 'a financial asset not at FVTPL', transaction costs that are di· ti ~1~~ 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at F ' Pk ~ 
are expensed in profit or loss. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant fo 1 ~ artered ~ 
component are measured at transaction price. coun/a111s -S 



Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing the 
financial asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

b) and at Amortized Cost 

v) Investments 

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or 
losses arising on re-measurement recognized in Statement of profit and loss. The gain or loss on disposal is 
recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Interest income is also recognized in Statement of profit and loss 
for FVTPL instruments. 

vi) Trade Payables and other payables 

Trade payables and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at transaction 
price. For these financial instruments, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short-term 
maturity of these instruments. 

vii) Impairment 

ru Financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets 
carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for the same in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

The Company uses a provision matrix management approved policy to determine impairment loss allowance on 
portfolio of its trade receivables and other financial assets. The provision matrix is based on its historically 
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and other financial assets and is adjusted for 
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated for changes 
in the forward-looking estimates. 

Ju Non - financial assets 

. Assets are tested for impairment at each reporting date and also whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). 

viii) Employee benefits 

a) Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company has the following employee benefit plans: 

a) Gratuity 
'3ssoc. Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity fund, which fully 

~ Pk 1~~ vers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life Insurance Corporation oflndia (LIC) 
Chartered d Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC). However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC 

Accountants BALIC as compared to the liability based on an independent actuarial valuation is recognized as a liability. 

he liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present 



value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method in conformity 
with the principles and manner of computation specified in Ind AS 19. 

The Calculation includes assumptions with regard to discount rate, salary escalation rate, attrition rate and 
mortality rate. Management determines these assumptions in consultation with the plan's actuaries and past trend. 

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in 
other comprehensive income. 

b) Defined contribution plans 

The Company contributes to two defined contribution plans for its employees: 

Contribution to provident fund is made to Government Provident Fund Authority 

Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority 

The Company recognizes contribution payable to these fund/ schemes as an expenditure when an employee 
renders the related service. Compensated absences 

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion 
of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods. The Company recognizes 
accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Non­
accumulating compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company 
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet as it does not have an unconditional right to defer its 
settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

c) Employee stock option scheme 

Stock options are granted to eligible employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 as formulated by 
Bajaj Finserv Limited ("Holding Company"). The scheme is administered through Bajaj Finserv Employee Stock 
Option Trust ("The Trust"). The mode of settlement of the scheme is through equity shares of the holding 
company . 

.. Further, cost of such options i.e. Option premium, which is reimbursed to the holding company is accounted 
in line with Ind AS 102 'Share based payments. 

The fair value of options granted under the Bajaj Finserv Ltd. - Employee Stock Option Scheme (BFS-ESOS) is 
recognized as an employee benefits expense. This amount is reimbursed to the holding company and is accounted 
in line with Ind AS I 02 'Share based payments. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to 
the fair value of the options granted: 

• including any market perfo1mance conditions (e.g., the entity's share price) 

• excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance conditions (e.g., continuance of an 
employee of the entity over a specified time period), and 

• including the impact of any non-vesting conditions 

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the specified vesting 
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of number of options that 
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the 
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss. 

In case of forfeiture/lapse stock option, which is not vested, amortized portion is reversed by credit to employee 
compensation expense. In a situation where the stock option expires unexercised, the related amount is recovered 
from the holding company. 



d) Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plans 

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating leave balance in respect of employees' 
services up to the end of the reporting period, are recognized as liabilities (and expensed), and are measured at 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

The Company also recognizes a liability and records an expense for bonuses (including performance-linked 
bonuses) where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

ix) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount to be recognized as provision is the best 
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When the likelihood of outflow of resources 
is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. 

The Company accrues the estimated cost of provisions of wellness benefit at the time when the revenue is 
recognised. The accruals are based on the Company's experience, benefits offered in the product and industry 
practices. Provision amount for OPD, diagnostic, telemedicine or similar healthcare is derived based on the 
respective components considered in product pricing. Provisioning amounts are tracked periodically and actual 
utilisations, if any, are adjusted against provision amount. If the customer does not utilize the benefit, the unused 
provision is reversed once the product period expires or at the end of contract term. 

x) Other income 
Interest on fixed deposit recognises income on accrual basis. 

xi) Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

a) Current income tax 

Current income tax for the current periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered by the taxation 
authorities based on the taxable income/ (loss) for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date and applicable for 
the period Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in 
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. 

b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising 
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the 
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction and affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction. .....-::::==::.::::-... 

rred income tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
h the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
e utilised. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and r 

e extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part 
Ted income tax asset to be utilised. ~ 

--..::::=~"'_._,,eferred income tax assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset 



is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
The Company offsets deferred income tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on 
either the same taxable entity,. 

xii) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single rec9gnition and measurement approach for all leases. The Company recognises 
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying 
assets.The company leases comprises majorily 

a) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in para 6. Impairment of 
non-financial assets. 

b) Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value 
of lease payments to be made over the lease tenn. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, 
using the government yield for the average lease period 

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a 
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used 
to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

xiii) Fair value measurement 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous accessible market as applicable. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy into Level I, Level II and Level Ill based on the lowest level input that is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole. 





Bajnj Finserv He1tlth Limited 
Notes to Fimmci1tl stAtements for the period ended March JJ, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note J: Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars Computers 

Gross Block 
As at March 3 I, 2022 454 40 
Additions 213 25 
DisoosaJs/ movement 17 69 
A.< al March 31, 2023 649,96 
Additions 112 77 
Di~oosals/ movement 
As at Mar31.2024 762.72 

Accumulated Depreciation 
As al March 31, 2022 139 36 
Additions 176 28 
Disposals/ movements 7 83 

As •I March 31 2023 307.81 
Additions 210 85 
Disoosals/ movements 
As Ill Mar 31, 2024 518.66 

Net Block 
Net book value as al March 31, 2023 342.15 
Net book value as al March 31. 2024 244,06 
•No revaluat ion in current or previous year 

Note 4: Ri~ht or Use Asset 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise slated) 

Particul1trs Leasehold Premises 

Gross Block 
As at March 31, 2022 1,710 58 
Additions 1,078 94 
Disoosels/ movement 524 00 
A• •t March 31 , 2023 2,265.52 
Additions 3,825 90 
Disposals/ movement l.769 54 
As at Mar3l , 2024 4 321.89 
Accumulated DepreciRtion 
As al March 31 , 2022 315.09 
Additions 460 44 
Disposals/ movements 279 54 
A• at M~rch 31, 2023 495,99 
Additions 639 76 
Disoosals/ movements 380 38 
A• at Mar31 , 2024 755,37 
Net Block 
Net book value a, at March 31. 2023 l.769,53 
Net book value as at March 3 l. 2024 3,566.51 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

87.49 
22 50 
82 98 
27.01 
24.80 

51.81 

16 47 
3 33 

17 83 
l.97 
4 31 

6.28 

25.04 
45.52 

Total 

1,710 58 
1,078 94 

524 00 
2,265.52 
3,825 90 
l.769-54 
4.321.89 

. 
315.09 
46044 
279 54 

495.99 
639 76 
380 38 
755,37 

. 
1,769.53 
3,566.51 

Leasehold Plant and omce Vehicles Total 
Improvements Machinery equipment 

253 ,90 93 21 89 59 190 20 1,168,79 
. 23 08 117 38 376,21 

253 90 92 31 52.28 499, 16 
0,90 60.39 307.58 1,045.ll4 
8 71 I 10.03 40047 656. 77 

. 9.61 170.41 708.05 1,702.61 

100 30 36 47 32 12 13 51 338,23 
12 99 5 07 12 15 27 53 237,35 

113 29 41 23 29 02 - 209,20 
0.31 15.25 41.04 366.38 
0 29 20 79 57,60 293 ,85 

. 0.60 36.04 98.64 660.22 

0,59 45.14 266.54. 679.46 
. 9.01 134.37 609.41 1.042.38 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note S: Intangible assets 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Computer 
sortware 

Gross Block 
As at March 31, 2022 15 06 
Additions 
Disposal-sf movement 
A, Al March 31, 2023 15 06 
Additions 
Disoosals/ movement 

As at Mar 31, 2024 15.06 
A.ccumul11ted Amortisation 
As al March 31, 2022 11.38 
Additions 3.52 
Disoosals/ movement 
As at M•rch 31, 2023 14.90 
Additions 0 15 
Disoosals/ movement 
As•tMar31,2024 15.05 

Net Block 
Net book value•• at March 31 2023 0.1~ 
Net book value as ~I March 31 , 1024 0.01 
~No revaluation m current or previous year 
•Intangible assets under development are internally generated assets 

JnternAlly Total 
generated 
intaneible 

3,333 ,16 3,348.22 
2,981 ,82 2,981.82 

42 ,10 4210 

6.272.88 6.287,94 
5,595.49 5,595.49 

II 868,36 11,883.43 

1,282.81 1,294.19 
832 07 835 59 
2848 28 48 

2 086.41 2,10L30 
1,723 15 1,723.30 

3,809.55 3.824.60 

4,186.48 4,186.64 
8.058.81 8,058.83 



Bajaj Finse.-v Health Limited 
Notes to Fimmcial statements rm· the period ended March Jl, 2024 
{All amounts in INR \akhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 6: Financial assets 

Note 6(a): Other Financial Assets - Non-current 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Securitv denos.its 
Total Othc1• Financial as~el 

Nole 6(b): Other Fimmcial Assets - cul'l'ent 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particula1'S 

Other nnnncial w ets 
'folnl 01hrr Plnnnd:d R5!el 

Note 6(c): Current Investments 

Particulars 

Investment in m\Jtua\ funds 
Mutual Funds (At Fair Value throuJ?:h P&L) 
Quoled 

7367, 10 (March 31, 2023: 7367 10) uni ls in HSBC Cash Fund• Growth Direct 
4,066 88 (March 31. 2023 : 4.066 88) units in Bandhan LiCJuid Fund - Growth -Direct 

*rotnt l 11111h1AI funds~ 
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 

Ag__~regate market value of quoted investments 

All investments mentioned above are within India 

Note 6(d): Tmde Receivables 

Pa11lcula1·s 

Trade receivables 
Receivables from related oarties 
Total receivables 
Trade receivables are non-mterest bearmg and are generally received w1thm 365 days 

H k rei1 •1111 or tr:u t ttt·t1vn ' hi es: 
Parlicula1'S 

Secured, considered good 
Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables which have increase in credit risk 
Tm~c Rcccl~blcs ~ croon imllairc.d 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
Trade Receivables - credit imoaired 

Total Trnde receivables 

TrRde receivAbles ageing schedule 

ParliculR1'S 

i) Undisouted Trade receivables - considered aood 
ii) Undisouted Trade Receivables - which have si'1:nificant increase in credit risk 
ii) Undisouted Trade Receivables - credit imoaired 
Cross Trade receivables 
Less; lmoairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
Trade 1·eceiv11blcs nel of Impairment Allowance 

Particulars 

fil Uriciisouted Trade receivahles - considered Rood 
ii) Undisouted Trade Receivables - which have sicmificant increase in credit risk 
Gross Trade receivables 
Less: lmoairmenl Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
1'r1ute rerelvnble,: net or lmpn1rmenl AUo,fnnra 

As at Ma1•Jt, 
2024 

448 54 
448.54 

As at Mar 31, 
2024 

45 69 
45.69 

As at Mar 31, 
2024 

177 25 
118 65 
295.90 
295 90 

295 90 

As at Mar 31, 
2024 

2,307 05 
I SOR R2 

J,815,87 

As al Mar 31, 
2024 

J,641 22 
184 Ji 

3.825.54 

966 

9.66 
3,815.87 

Not due 

I 84 JI 

184.31 

Not due 
47 03 

1.877 79 

1,924,R2 

As at March 31, 
2023 

214.14 
214.14 

As ftt March 31, 
2023 

12.30 
12.30 

As at March 31, 
2023 

165 I 8 
I 10 56 
275.74 
275 74 

275 74 

As at March 31, 

2023 
1.929 61 

131 22 
2.060.83 

As nt Mnnh 31 1 

2023 

400 97 
1,950 81 

111 56 
2,463.34 

290 95 
111 >6 
402.51 

2,060.~3 

31 Morch 2024 

l.en than6 6 lllJlnth,-lvear 1·2 vear.s Total 
J ,64! .22 - J ,641 22 

- . 184 31 
. 

3Ji41.ll - 3,825.53 
9 66 

3.815.87 

31 Morch 2023 
Less lham 6 6 rnonths-1 v.ear l•lvMrJ Tola! 

352 07 0.60 I 27 400 97 
73 02 1,,950 81 

111.56 111 56 
425.09 0.60 112.83 2.463.34 

402 51 
2.060,83 



Ba.ia.i Finserv Health Limited 
Notes lo Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 6(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks 
• m current accounts 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

Note 6(f) Other balances with bank 

Particulars 

Bank deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months• 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 
2024 2023 

1,909.79 1,080.85 
5,460 19 1,228.40 
7,369,98 2 309.25 

As al Mar 31, As al March 31, 
2024 2023 

175,00 25 ,00 

175.00 25.00 
•of which Rs, 17 5 lokh pertmns to short tenn deposit, placed with the bank as security towards bnnk guarantee 

Note 7: Unrecognised Deferred lax assets 

Balance Sheet 
Particulars As al Mar 31, As at March 31, 2023 

2024 
Deferred tax Ila bilities 
On account of timing differences in: 
Defined benefit plans provisions - OCI (28,65) (53,53) 
Fixed asset- impact of depreciation/ amortisation charged for financial reporting (1,022.42) (442 .71) 
purpose 
Fair valuation of mutual funds including FMP (20 ,15) (l.95) 
Deferred tax assets 
Recoenizcd 10 fhe extent of Deferred tax liability 1.053.01 498 19 
Net d eferred tnx (liability)/ asset -

Statement of profit and loss 
As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 
2024 2023 

(24.88) 52.19 
579 71 277 ,70 

0.00 0.00 

(554 82) (329 89) 

- -

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only ifit has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to detennine the amount of deferred tax assets 
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Note 8: Other non-current assets 

Particulars As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 
2024 2023 

GST credit receivable 1,117,30 1,957.13 
Prepayment to gratuity fund - 168,88 
Prc11nvmc111 townrd share based payment (Refer note 27) 424.37 333.78 
Tota l other non current r1ss•ts 1,541.67 2,459.79 

Note 9: Other current assets 

Particulars AsatMar31, As at March 31, 
2024 2023 

Prepaid expenses 409 ,42 589 97 
Prepayment toward share based payment (Refer note 27) 881.10 460.50 
Supplier advances 3,474.92 1,350.97 
OST deposits 195.49 42.45 
Totnl other current assets 4,960.93 2,443.89 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the period ended March JI, 2024 
(Ail amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note JO: Equity share capital and other equity 

IO(a) Equity share eapital 

Authorised Issued, Sub.'icribcd and paid uu cQnitv share capital 
Particulars As at Mar JI, 

2024 
Authorised 
50 00,000 eauitv shares of Rs 10 each 500.00 

Issued, suhscrihed and fullv naid uo 
25,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each (PY 25,00,000 250.00 
equitv shares) 

250.00 

As at March 31, 
2023 

500.00 

250,00 

250.00 

m Rern11cilintion of the shnri:s outstandlnl! at the he~ in nine and at the end of Ilic vcnr 
Particulars Number of Equity share 

shares (in lakhs) capital 
(par value) 

As at Marcb 31 2022 25 250.00 
Equity share capital issued, subscribed and fully paid up . . 
during the vear 
As at March 31 2023 25 250.00 
Equity share capital issued, subscribed and fully paid up - . 

during the year 

As at Mar J 1 2024 25 250.00 

Terms and rights attached to equity shares 
Equity shares have a par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of 
winding up the company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held . 
Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is 
entitled to one vote, 

(ii) Shores of the eomnnnv held Ill' holdlnl? company 
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2024 (in lakhs) 2023 /in lakhs) 
Bajaj Finserv Limited 25 25 
(immediate and ultimate holding comoany) 

(iiil Dclails of~hnreholdcrs holdine more than 5% shares in the comoanv 
Pa rticu la rs As at Mar 31 2024 As at March JI. 2023 

Number of % holding Number of % holding 
shares (in lakhs) shares lin lakhs) 

Bajaj Finserv Limited 25 100% 25 
(immediate and ultimate holding companv) 

M Dc1nils of nromokr shnrcho ldln!! 
Promoter name As at Mar 31. 2024 

Number of 01., holding % change Number of 

100% 

As at March 31. 2023 
% holding % change 

shares (in lakhs) durin!! the year shares (in lakhs) d11rin11 the year 
Bajaj Finserv Limited 25 100% 0% 25 100% 0% 
/immediate and ultimate holdin!!, comoanv) 

I0Cbl Reserves and surnlus 
Particulars As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 

2024 2023 
Retained earnings (54.531.32) (39.073 79) 
Total reserves and surplus (54,531.32) (39 073.79) 

R eta nei cam n~s 
Particulars As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 

2024 2023 
Opening balance (39,073.79) (20,487.98) 
Net profi t/ (loss) for the period (J 5,361.83) (18,786.56) 
Items of other comprehensive income recognised 
directly in retained earnings 
• Remeasurements of post-employment benefit (95 70) 200.75 
obligation. net of tax 
Total Retained earnini:s (54.531.32) (39 073.79) 

10/c) Instruments entlrclv in caultv 
Particulars As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 

202.4 2023 
Opening balance 45,750.00 23,750.00 
Add: Additions during the vear 23,500.00 22 ,000,00 

Closin!! balance 69,250.00 45 750.00 



Baiui Finsen· Health Limited 
Notes 10 Flnttncial stutements ror the ucriod cndctl March 31, 2024 
(All amounls in INR lokhs. unless othernrise slolcd) 

Nole 11: Flnunciul Liabililics 

Nole I I (a): Lcusc Liul.Jilitics 

FollowillR is 11\e breakup of curtenl and 11on-c11rteul lease liabililics as al March 31 , 2024 and Murch 3 I, 2023 

Par1icuhtrj As at Mar 31, As"'' M11rch JJ, 
202..1 2023 

Current leose liabilities 56K 43 379 04 
Non Current lease liobililies 2 989 U7 1,40(1 ~I 

Tolltl J ss-1.,11 l,7H5 • ..15 

Following is movemenl i11 lease liabilities during period ended March 31 , 2024 aud March 31 . 2023 

Particulnrs Asa1Mur31, As :ti Mnrth 31, 
2112◄ 21123 

Opening balance 17K5H 1.373 93 

Addi[ions 3,728 97 1,029 15 
Deletions l,H371 282 42 
Finance cosl accrued during lhe period 25192 193 13 
Pevmenl oflcosc liebililies 7J5 13 52.8..Jq 

Tolul 3 ~57.511 J,"lf.111;,.,5 

111c table below pro,·ides details re~arding the contractual maturities of lease li;ibililics as al March 31. 21124 and March 31. 21123 
on 1111 undiscou111cd basis 

Pnr1iculars 

Less lhan 0JlC)'Car 
One lo live ,,cars 
More 1lu111 fh'C'lT.'IU-

Totttl 

1 l(b) Olhcr currcn1 financinl lhtbilitics 

Emplo)cc bcnclils payable 
Capital creditor 
O1her ne,·ables 
Total other current financhtl liabilities 
•Other payable cQm,1rl'4,!.i t> l' ll,1blJJ1,• fa:r c:o<penscs 

1 J {c) Trade oa.v:1blcs 

Particulars 

Trade oayablcs 
•lot.al ou1s1anding dues of micro enterprises aud small cnlcrpriscs 

As al Mar 31. As nl March 31, 
202-1 2013 

:'i6K-B 537 40 
2.989.07 1,622 o.s 

As nl Mar 31, As al M:1rch 31, 
2UH 

2.255 ,67 
91 ~6 

K(,2 uu 
J.lU9,1J 

,'\sat Mar 31. 
202-1-

2023 

I 806 84 
166 ~6 
335. 12 

l.JUUl 

As nl Mm th 31, 
2023 

•lotul ou1ua11dl1111 duos orcredilors other lhan micro c111crpriscs and small entcmriscs ~.14~.6~ 
2,UG 

3,,.542 .·4' 

Trade payables arc ouu-lnt«al bcarmg and arc generally 011 tenns of311 dn)'I fio111 rccc,pl of 11wo1cc 

Pllr1iculnrs As al Mai 31, As al M;arch JJ, 
202-1 2023 

Trade payables 5.IU.5•U 2 677, 7K 
Trade oayoblcs lo related earlies (Refer note 23) •IU ~ll 866 ,75 
nm11 1rud1: t11"11hl(!JI !- 145..6.5 J SH.<J 

The disclosure pursuant Lo lhc Micro, Sm.ill and Medium Enlcrprisc.s Development Acl 2006. IMSMED AcLI .is al March 31 , 
2024 ,md Morch 31, 2023 i.s as under: 

l'cuik u1J1r,J 

(.n l P1h1aip1:d omounl remaining unp.iid 
tb) Inlcrcsl due thereon remainiug w1p11id 
(0) Interest p.:iid by the Company in Lcnns or Section JG or the MSMED Acl, nlong \\ith 
1bc amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
(d) lnlercst due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which ha ve been 
paid but beyond Lhc appointed dey during 1hc period) but wi1hou1 adding iutcrcst 
specified under lhe MSMED Act 
(e) lnteresl accrued aud remaining unpaid 
(f) Further l111crc~l remaining due and payoble P' 'CO \n 1hc s1ttcCl."Cli110 }Cars. nutll 5uC.h 
doto when 1he l111ercsi dues as obovc arc actunll)' paid 10 1t1c ,mmll enlcrpriscs or 1hc 
1rmn_ecotdiull o1, m'rc:o as n dcd1ae1lbla b~bomlhuru umler ~~fun 23 

As al M11r31, 
i112, 

As al M11rc:h JI, 
llUJ 

2 06 

Pariiculars Untli~ IUICtl oushmdinl!. llS at 31 Mllrch 2112.S 
Not ,,ct clue 1.£.!s. th.an 1 wHr Ttlln l 

OtUCrs J56 11 

P.n1iculars IJ11db, 1utr-1I OU NIJUul ln 11, Ill 31 Man!h lllll 
Lc~s lhun 1 ,·car To11tl 

MSME 2 UG 2 06 
01'1.crs l,921 30 1.621 17 3,542 47 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 12: Provisions 

Particulars As at Mar 31, As at March 31, 
2024 2023 

Provision for wellness services 2,158.61 1,514.04 

Total 2,158.61 1,514.04 

(i) Information about individual provisions and significant estimates 

Provision for Wellness services 
Provision is made for estimated liabilities of servicing customers for diagnostic benefits at the end of the reporting period. 
Management estimates the provision based on any recent trends that suggest expected claims. 

(ii) Movements in provisions 
M h I f ovements m eac c ass o prov1s1on urmg t e manc1a year are set out d . h fi . I b I eow: 
Particulars Cancellation Provision for Total 

I provision wellness services 
As at April 01, 2022 - 797.20 797.20 
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 

-additional provisions recognised - 4,268.04 4,268.04 
-unused amounts reversed - 325.44 325.44 

Amounts used during the year - 3,225.76 3,225.76 
As at March 31, 2023 - 1,514.04 1,514.04 
As at April 01, 2023 - 1,514.04 1,514.04 
Charged/( credited) to profit or loss 

-additional provisions recognised - 11,495.06 11,495.06 
-unused amounts reversed - 1,695.22 1,695.22 

Amounts used during the year - 9,155.26 9,155.26 
As at March 31 , 2024 - 2,158.61 2,158.61 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to F'innncial statements for the pel'iod ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 13: Provisions 

Particula1'S 

Provision for comcensated absences 
Provision for graluity 

Total enrnlovee benelit obli~ations 

i) Defined benelit phms: 

a Graluity -

Current 

Ma lM or'.11,2024 

Non-c11rrcnt Total 
422 77 422 77 

63.39 63 39 
422.77 63.39 486.17 

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has completed five 
years of service is entitled to specific benefits The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service, managerial 
~rade and salarv at retirement age. 

M I d n ov,mu:nr n c 1urd hcnclil ublir,z.nuons 
Particulars As at Ma,· 31, 2024 As at Much 31 1 

20Z3 
Defined benefit obligations at the beginning ofrhe year 570 88 451 53 
Current service cost 149 16 157 39 
Interest on defined benefit obligations 40 67 32 53 
Remeasurement due to: 
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account orfinancial assumption 13 86 (8 08) 

Actuarial loss/(ga in) arising on account of demographic ass~1mpLion (255. 79) 
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 86 33 58 26 

Benefits paid (2 98) (2 84) 
Liabilities assumed/ (settled)* (49.27) 137 88 

Delined bendit oblie.ation as al the end of lhe veRr 808.63 570.88 
•on account of inter group transfer 

l\'IOV<'m<'n l In nlnn ns~Hi 
Pal'licula1·s As at Mar 31, 2024 As nt March 31, 

2023 
Fair value of plan asset as at the beginning of the year 739 76 SI I 34 
Employer contribution 19295 

Interest on plan assets 53 25 27 98 
Remeasurement due to: 

Actual return on plan assets less interest 011 plan assets 4 49 (4 86) 
Benefits paid (2 98) (2 85) 
change in asset ceiling 0 00 0 so 
Assets ac<1uired (49 27) )4 70 
Fair vuluC' or nh,n asset ns at lhe end of the year 745.25 739.76 
• Assets acquired include write off of Rs 123 18 l.l1khs towards inter group transfer of senior employees 

R T ti aconc1 tn on o I' l 'I' I nN ut u 1tyi ,,uni 
Parlicula1·s AsatMarJt,2024 As nt Mnrch 31 1 

2023 
Net defined benefit liability/(assel) as at the beginning of the year (168 38) (59 81) 
Expense charged to statement of profit and loss 136 57 161 95 
Amount recognised outside Profit and loss 95 70 (200,75) 
Employer contribution 000 (19295) 
Remeasurement due to : 

Actuarial loss/(~ain) arising on account of experience changes 0 00 0 00 
l.10bllot lo, Ql;umed/ (settled) 0.00 123 I S 
Nel denned bi111dil liability/(assel) as nt lhe end of the vear 63.89 (168.38) 

J0.1ucnat1 chnr~.ed ro 11ie. Stuh.m1<"11t of Profit ond l~o~, 
Pal'ticula1'S As :it Mar 31 1 2024 As RI Mat'ch 31, 

ZOZJ 
Current service cost 149 16 157 39 
Write off for Assets acquired 0 00 123 18 
l.ntcre.Jt nn net ~lufrni:<l lM!J 1e r,1 liability/ (asset) (12 58) 4 56 
E:J.~rn,u c.h11r11ed to tht Srn1c-uuud ur Prom nnd Ll')n 136.57 2115.13 

This space has been intentionally left blank 

A, at Mardi 31, 2023 

Cu1·renl Non-current Total 
313 85 313 85 

. 
313,85 313.85 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Notes to Financial statements for• the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

H t',HU.1U111~ nu.•,nt ·enimll lo.,3e.s} in olher nmn1·c-hr.m:h·1 income 

Partic11la1'S 

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of financial assumption 

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of demographic assumption 

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 
Aclual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 
Adiustment to recoanise effect of asset ceiling 

F,:-1:pen~es chAre,ed to the.Statement or OCT 

Amount 1;trGe.uis-ed in Balance sheet (Rde.,· nule 8) 
Particulars 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 

Fair v_alue ofdJlJl assets 
Net de.lined benelit.asset reco2ni.sed in Ralance Sheet 

Ke.'Y i,trundnl JIJ:ll t1u11>lions 
Particula1·s 

piscount rate (pa) 
Salary escalation rate (pa) 

Mortality table 

Withdrawal rate 

C nCeE!orv ofoln n AHcl, 

Particulars 

Iosurer Managed fonds.. 
To1nl nhu1 os:rc.c1.~ 

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as shown below 

As at Mar31, 2024 As at March 31, 
2023 

13.86 (8.08) 
0.00 (255. 79) 

86.33 58.26 
(4.49) 4,86 

0.00 0,00 

95.70 (200,75\ 

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 
2023 

808 63 570 88 

745 25 739 76 
-63.38 168.88 

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 

2023 
7 20% 7.45% 

1000% 10.00% 
IALM(2012-14)Ult IALM(2012-14) Ult 

15 00% 15.00% 

As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31 1 

2023 
745 25 739 76 
745,25 739.76 

The following table summarises the impacl in absolute tenns on Lhe reported defined benefit obligation at lhe end of 

Lhe reporting period arising on account ofan increase or decrease in the discount rate and salary escalation rate 

Particula1·s As al Mar 31, 2024 All al MR1'<.h J I, 2023 
Q_.t;.% im;rease- lo.~% d~cnas.e. 0.5% inct·ease I 0.5.% lko·e-as.e 

Defined benefit obligation due lo sensitivity in discount rate 781 331 837 62 551 47 1 591 45 
Defined be.nefit oblirratioJJ due IQ sensilivitv in sal::arv i;sca.IBtion rate 836 72 781 88 591 23 551 82 

Projected Pinn Cash Flow 
As at Madi, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Senior Staff Junio1· Stnrr Senior Starr Juniol' Sta.IT 
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 63 50 1842 40 00 10 04 
Between 2 and 5 years 230 62 136 77 183 33 78 46 
Between 5 and 10 years 245 84 130 88 177.59 83 17 
Beyond 1 0 year, 314 77 345 6-5 280 Jl 217 95 

Total Exper-ted Payments &54.74 631 ,72 681.05 389.62 

NOit'. H • 01he1' c11rr,111 li11biU1ie.11 
Particula1'S As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 

2023 
Statutory and other liabilities 1,138.37 509.88 
Refund liabilily 14.81 2 65 
Advance from customers 1.013 26 155.77 
To 1nl 01he1· llnblli1iu 2,166.44 668.30 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 15: Revenue From Operations 

h T e company dervies the fol lowing types ofrevenue : 
Particular 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
-Sale of services 
Total revenue from oprations 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31 , 2023 

61 ,514.63 17,996.74 
61,514.63 17,996.74 

The Company collects GST on behalf of the Government. Hence, GST is not included in Revenue from operations. 

R Tf econc1 1a 10n o f 1 . h revenue rccogmsel wit contract Dnce 
Particular Year ended March Year ended March 

31,2024 31,2023 
Gross collections as per contracted price 71,638.11 28,553.40 
Deductions for: 
Contract liabilities- Insurance premium 8,525.62 8,525.62 
Net cancellation 1,597.86 2031.04 
Revenue from operations 61,514.63 17,996.74 

Note 16: Other income 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31 , 2023 

Net unrealised fair value gain of financial assets measured at fair 20.15 14.97 
value through profit and loss 
Interest income from fixed deposits 261.70 17.59 
Refund retained 380.63 398.08 
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 184.79 67.85 
Business Support Charges 14.27 -
Total other income 861.55 498.49 

Note 17: Employee benefits expense 

Particular Notes Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31,2023 

Salaries, wages and bonus 10,084.20 8,846.17 
Contribution to provident and other funds 369.10 302.10 
Share based payment to employees 27 1,350.74 746.05 
Gratuity 13 136.57 285.13 
Stalfweltare expenses 1,087.71 600.05 
Tota l emplovee benefit expense 13,028.31 10,779.50 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 18: Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particular 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 
Amortisation of intangible assets 
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 

Note 19: Other expenses 

Particular 

Sales commission 
Customer Service claims/provider claims 
Sub-contracting expenses 
Fees for Technical services* 
Brand and marketing 
Communication charges 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Travel and conveyance 
Business support expenses (refer note 23) 
Office expenses 
Legal and professional fees 
Bad debts expenses 
Recruitment expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 
Payments to auditors (refer note l 9(a) below) 
Rates and taxes 
Exnected credit Joss for trade receivables 
Total other expenses 

Notes 

3 
4 
5 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31,2023 

293.85 237.35 
639.76 460.44 

1.740.15 835.59 
2,673.75 1,533.38 

Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31,2023 

29,204.57 11,671.70 
10,978.47 4,334.54 
11,802.25 3,038.80 
3,742.51 1,541.19 
1,610.89 1,248.73 
1,225.32 1,189.82 

276.46 471.62 
1,473.42 424.46 

420.81 
427.09 232.86 
989.14 165.15 

19.89 148.64 
243.31 26.61 

15.51 10.81 
5.49 5.00 

51.01 0.30 
(281.29) -154.00 

61,784.02 24,777.04 
*Development costs that are not eligible for capitalisation have been expensed in the period incurred and recognised in other 
expenses 

Note 19(a): Details of payments to auditors 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31 , 2023 

Payment to auditor 
As auditor: 
Statutory audit fee 4.00 4.00 
Tax audit fee 1.00 1.00 
Out of pocket expenses 0.49 -
Total payments to auditor 5.49 5.00 

Note 20: Finance costs 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2024 31,2023 

Interest expense on leased liabilities 251.92 191.87 
Finance costs expensed 251.92 191.87 



Baja.I Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to Financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024 
(AU amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 21: Fair value measurements 

~innnclnl infi lrmucnls b,, call'l!.ur_v 
Particular 

Financial assets 
(nvestments 

- Mutual funds 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Security deposits 
Other bahmces with banks 
Other financial assets 
Total linancial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Trade payables 
Lease liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total linancial liabilities 

As at Mor 31 2024 
Fair Value 

FVPL FVOCI 
Amortised 

rnd 

29590 - . 
3,815.87 
7,369 98 

448 54 
175 00 
45 69 

295.90 11 85S.09 

. 5,145 65 

. 3,557 50 

. 3.209 13 

. . 11,912,27 

As nt March 31 2023 
Carrying Fair Value Carrying 

Value FVPL FVOCI 
Amortised Value 

Cnst 

~95.90 275 .74 275 74 
3,815.87 . . 2,060 83 2,060 83 
7,369,98 2,309 25 2,309 25 

448 ,54 21414 214 14 
175,00 25 00 
45.69 . 1230 37 30 

12,150,99 275,74 - 4.621.52 4,897.26 

5,145 65 - 3,544 53 3,544.53 
3,557 50 . 1,785 45 1,785 45 
3,209 13 - 2 308 42 2.308 42 

11,912.27 . - 7.638.40 7 638.40 

The management assessed Iha! cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term 
maturities of these instruments 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale. 
The fair values of the quoted mutual funds are based on price quotations at the reporting date The fair value of obligations under leases is estimated by discounting future cash flows using 
rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities 

Note 22: EarninRS per share 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the deemed equity, if any) by the weighted average number 

of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity 

shares 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Particulars As at Mar 31, As at March 
2024 31 , 2023 

A) Profit attTibutable to the equity holders of the company: (15,361 83) (18,786 56) 
B) Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earnings 25 00 25 00 
oer share 
Enrnin£ per Shore (Basic) (Rs) (614.47) (751.46) 
C) Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earnings 4,794 94 3,696.99 
oer share 
l':arnine per Share (Diluted) (Rs)• (614.47) (75L46l 
"'Diluted Eammg per share 1s same as Basic eammg per share smce potential equity shnrc:.s it l.rn,irny anti-dilutive impact 



1_1111~1 flnu::n Hr:ilth l.iml!l.'fl 
Noles lo Fin1tnchtl stalcnicnu ror the ucriod ended Marth 31, 202J 
(All OlllOUlllS in lNR lokhs , unlc.ss 0lhcrwisc staled) 

Nole 23: Disclosure or transaction~ wllh rcl11tcd 1mrties 11s rcc111lrcd by lhc Jndian AccounlinJ! Stunchml -24: 

N1tmc nr rclntcd 1•ttny nnd nRlure or relnlionshlp Nalurc or 1rammc1ion 

Hohlln2 COfflJlAR)' : 

Bajaj FinSCr\' Ltd (Holding compon~·) Contribution from group in nn111rc or equity 
Business Support Charges-
Tongible assclS purchased 
Reimbursement for sll.lrc based payment 

Suhslcllnrlc,; }Incl (enow suhsldlnr:,: 
Bajaj Allio111. General l11sur1111cc Co Lid. lnsunmcc prcmiwn paid for employccs/asscls during the }'Car 
(Fellow s11bsidiory) Ad,•mK:C prc111hu11 paid 

lnsurnncc prcmium paid for master policy ngrecmc11t 
Closi11g balance of advance for mosler policy 
Revenue 

Bajaj Alli;rn;,, Life Insurance Co Lid !11suro11ce premium paid for employees during the year 
(Fcllo11 subsidiary) Advance premium paid 

Insurance premium paid for master policy agrecmenl 
Closing balance of 0oat ndvance 
Rcnl C.'-penscs 
Sccurily deposit received 
Rcimbursc111e111 
RC\'COue 

Bajaj Finance Lid Su.h,'Cfl llon t.OJI clus.tl;Cd tlwin& dlia ,., 
(Fellow subsidiary) Business support sen ices pro\'idcd 

Tangible 11sse1s purehoscd 
Marl.cling Fees roccil'.iblc during the period 
Markcl inc fees payable during the rear 
Outslonding payable balance et ycor end 
Tangible ossels Sales 

Bnjaj Finscrv Dirtet Limited Business Support Chorgcs 
(Fel low subsidiary) Marketing fees payable during the year 

Rent Expense 
Marketing Fees rceci,able during lhc period 
Tanciblc Asscls purchased 

Bajaj Housing Finance Ud Marketing fees paysblc during lhc ycor 
(Fellow subsidiary) 

Bajaj Financial Sccurilics Lid NPS Conlribulio11 paid 
(Fellow subsidiury) 

Bajaj Assc:I Mauagcmeut Co Lid Rc\'enue 
(fellow subsidiery) 

Olher entil)' 
Bajnj Hold inRS end Im cstmcnt Lld Rci111burscmc11L 
(Olhcrent ily) 

Hind Musnlir A~cnc) Ltd Tra,•ellin~c:,:pcnscs 
(O1hcre11tily) 

Bajaj Allia11z Slaffing Solutions Lid Oulsourccd resource cosl 
(OLhercntitY) 

Bnjo j Aulo Employees Group Grotuih· Fund Pnid conlribulion for Group Gratuitv Fund ror junior slalf 
(Olher Entity) 

Ba.i~i Aulo Senior stolTGroup Gro1uity Fund Poid contribution for Group Gratuil\' Fund ror senior slalT 
(OIiier Enlily) 

Kc)' Mnmu!crlal Personnel 
Dc\'ang Modr (Whole Time Dirce1or) Shor1 1cm1 employee benefits 

Share based payment 

Tnmsnction Value 
ror the 1,crlod 
ended March 31. 
2024 

(23,5011) 

325 

1,98 1 

1060, 

474 ,66 

(7,290 12) 

IM,99 

7941.19 

(165 03) 

14 12 

24 95 
(18258) 
7.372 5R 

O,R3 
2,36 
4,00 

726 76 

Iii 06 

(4 28) 

ti 08 

R4 35 

53 56 

3 .S I 

I .JOH 06 
6.'705 

TI1c above disclosures have been made for related parties identified ns such only lo be in conronuity with the Indian Accounling Standard (Ind AS) 2<1 
All nbo\'C Lronsaclions nre in the ordinmy co111sc of business and on onns' length basis cxcl11di11g tax impact. 

Outslnnding Trnnsnclion Value 
11mounls carried ror lhc llerlod cndell 
in lhc B1dance March 31, 2023 
Sheri 

((19.500) (22,000 00) 

- HORI 

108545 

51 (,9 
3 40 

2 902 69 
254 84 

1: -li.lO 75 (2.921'.i 60) 

1795 
5 69 

3.548 29 
I 111 4 1 

-23 11 
t<~ 21 

(,3 90 -4033 

R954 

244 
4, 17 (277 56) 

SJ 09 7,926 27 

-318 14 

•I ll 2149 
. 0 59 

.032 
2 01 

16 83 

16 Kl 

(40 11) 77, 14 

42 48 

111 31 

M8 69 

I 099 38 
45R 94 

Name of1hc related pony and 11oturc of the rclolcd party relationship \\here coulrol exis1s ha\'c been disclosed irrespective ofwhclher or 1101 lhcrc hnve been 1ronsllelions bcl\\ccn the related parties 
In other cnscs disclosure ho\'c been made only when lhcrc hmc been tra11saclions with those parties 

Note 2-1: Cn1,llal M1tnR1temcn1 

ObjcclhCJ, 1K>llcics nnd IJrotC.UCS orc111•itnl m11na2cmcnt 
TI1c Comtmn,· h,1s uo cnoiwl olltcr 1hnn Eauih· The Comp31w is not c.~ooscd to a1w rc11.11laton• imooscd capital requin:mcnls 

Outsflmcllng 
amounis urrtcd 
In the BAIAnce 
Sbcct 

(46.000 00) 
(I I 83) 

(95 07) 

340 

26991 
84 65 

5,69 

68 1,73 

8,01 

38 56 
(866 n ) 

0 37 

(16 28) 

111e cnsh surpluses ore currcully imcslcd in income generating through short tenu/ liquid m1111Jal funds and short 1cnu fix dcposils depending 011 eco110mie co11di1ions in line wi1h lhc guidelines sci 0111 by the manogcmenl 
Safety of capital is or prime imporlnncc to ensure availobilily of funds aod liquidily for operations ln\·cstmcul objeclive is lo provide safely on the surplus fonds 

P11rticulnrs As nt Mnr JI . 2024 Asat MarchJf. 
2023 

Equity 14.%K.68 6,926 21 

Adjustments: 
Tangible ,md 01her esscls (I l />05,4 7) (8,527 38) 
Wnrld11a cnoi1al r3or,7lll l.87(, 9 1 

lrn"t'Rtmrn111 in Muh111I f'untlJI l~.HS !i!i.7~ 



Ba.hd Flnserv HeAlfh Limited 
Notes to FinanciAI statements fo1• the pel'iod ended March 31, 2024 
(All amounls in INR lakhs, unless olherwise slaled) 

Note 2S continued: Liquidity Risk 

Pruden! liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and markelable securities and a\'nilability or funding to meet obligations when due and Lo close oul market positions Management monitors 
forecasts of the liquidity posilion or company and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of e.xpected cash nows 

The table below shows an analysis or nfif.!l!i: [llll.l li cibili111.-s :mnlvsed fmh111ri1, · Lm.o.h!i.is) nc.c0rdl111.1. 10 \\•h'or1 1~uw .nre to bu r~o, 1.m.i 01 :rull 

Particul~1·s \Vllhin 11 months 
Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right of Use Asset 
Other intangible assets 
Other assets 
Current la\: assets (nel) 
ln,•eslments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalenls 
Security deposits 
Other balances with banks 
Olher FimmciaJ assets 
Totnl Assets 
Liabilities 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 
Trade payables 
Lease liebilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total Llabllllles 

Net 

Nole 26: Capital and olher cornmilmenls 

(a) Capital Commitments 

V1u-titul111• 

. 

4,96093 

295 90 
3,815 87 
7,369 9M 

175 00 
45 69 

16,663.37 

2,581 41 
2,166.44 
5,145 (,5 

56X 43 

3,209 lJ 
13671,06 

2.992,31 

Capital commitments [estimated amount ofconlrac1s remaining 10 be 
executed on capital account not pro\'ided for (nel ofadvances)J 

(b) Other Commilments 

Pal'ticulill' 

The Company has agreed to invest for the aCQu isation of Vidal HealthCore 
Service Pvt Ltd• 
Bank Puaranlee .. 

JI-M • r•H 
After 11 months 

l ,ll42 3K 
3,566 51 
K,058 83 
1,541 67 

370 89 

448 54 

15,028.83 

2,981)07 

2 989,07 

12.039.76 

Vear ended Mnrch 31, 
2024 

Veilrended M:U'ch JI, 
2024 

32,500 00 

350 00 

Tntnl 

I ,lJ.12 38 
3,566 51 
8,058.83 
6,502 GO 

370 89 
295 90 

3,81587 
7,369.9M 

448 54 
175.00 
45 ,69 

31 692,21 

2,581,41 
2,166,44 
5, 145,65 
3,557.49 
3 209, IJ 

16.660,11 

15 032.\0 

Vear ended MArch lJ, 
2023 

Vear ended March J l, 
2023 

50 00 
•Pursuant to thr. aprir~\TJI or1he Board of Directors, during the year erul~d ·~larch 31, 2024, tH(! Company has entered mlo share 
purchase agreement for 100% acquisition in Vidal Heallhcare Services P, I Lld , a registered compnny Wlder Companies Act 1956 
Bajaj Finser\' Limited ("the holding company") has agreed lo im esl a sum of { 325 crore in Bujaj Finserv Heallh Lid , a wholly owned 
subsidiary or Bajaj Finserv lo complete lhe acqu isition of Vidal Healthcare Sen•ices Pvl Ltd 

••issued againsl bank deposit of Rs 175 lakhs 

Note 27: Share-based payments (Employee oplion plan) 

Wi1hi11 11 monllur 

. 
2,443.89 

275,74 
2,0GO 83 
2,309 25 

25 00 
12.JO 

7.127.01 

1,827 89 
(,68 30 

3,544 53 
399.48 

2 30ft 42 
8,748,62 

(l 621.61) 

l l-Mlh••lJ 
;\OC!r 1'2 moulhs rro1111 

679 46 679 46 
1,769 53 1,769 53 
4,18664 4, 18664 
2,459 79 4.903.68 

624 23 624 23 
. 275 74 

2,060 83 
2,309 25 

214 14 2 14 14 
25 lKI 
12 30 

9 933.79 17.060.80 

1,827 89 
668 30 

3,544 53 
974 46 I ,7H5,44 

2.308 42 
974.46 10 134.58 

8 959.33 6 926.22 

111c com11nnr htts u~oplcd 1he umplo~etl S.lQi:k opll~ms 1>lm1.. l()I K (ESOP swhli:'me) ronnul1ued 0," 11.S" holdm~ 1;omp:iU1~·1 tor 11 ~ um1>loyE'es nn~ ~11111.kt)'~~s.or lts.subsldi rme:s, pumrn.11110 1h~ l'eaolu lio11 pass~,d by 
.$1mreholtlers. AL 1he ru1m1ol gcnl!n1.l me1!1in1;. TIie emp'i'O)roe th)ck optiou~ 11lun b: dc:dgr11.1d 101110, 1d~ fnten1h•t 10 the cm1ll oruc-s er 1he compnny 10 d~ll\ er long It.rm rel urns ru1d 1s rm cquu, soHh:d pJwt, Tht'I IJSOP 
tchtml:. fs 11!.lministrJrcd by 11 1<1 bQnrd nnd holding compCLU)' $lrnrci will b.:., l~sUt."il. under 11 1.u K hc::rno to e1T1ployces, Po.rdcl1u11k1n in the ll!tm is nl lh~ 130<1rds-'i d1!iad t;m and n.u lndl\·1dunl ha!! n commclual 11~111 lo 
p1trt1c1p1ue in die plnn or 10 rccch'e nny ,sunrmuec-d benefits. <>1>1ions grontcd under ESOP scht'nu.1 wo uld \•est In 11q1 lw thnn om: ~r nml not 1110,e lh1111 ro 11r ·em lrnm the Joh! or ur:ml or1he options Th~ board of 
the comp:mr h115 appro,·ed grant wilh rnln.ied vesting conditions. Vesting of the options would be subject to continuous employsm.'111 wilh lhe compnny and hence the options would ,·est with the passage of time Fair 
value of op1tons is reimbursed to 1hc flnrcnt company amoW1ling 10 Rs. 702.70 lokhs (FY2 I-Rs 221.12 lacs) which is umCJflhilXt un.·r the vestmg p~•.rlod. 

Once vc~u:d, the options remnl11$1!."orcisable for a period of nine yeors. Options granted under the plan are for no consideration and cany no dividend or voling rights On exercise, eilch option is con\ enible into one 
cq,1lty sl1nre of lhe holding crompar1)1

1 

Particula1·s 

Opl'nin1> assel orsJ1111t: bn~d paymenl transaclion 
Pn ·ment towa,.d share based payment 
GXpCflsc arising from share based payment transr,ction 
Closlli'' os_._e1 ursh11re b.tSed llnvmcnl 1rnnsoction 

Below is summary of options granted under the plan 

Pi11·ticulars Vear ended. March JI. 2024 
Opening balance 
Granted during the year 
Exercised during lhe year 

Closinl!' helance 

Fair value of options 2ranted 
Tranche 1 

49,356 00 
2,029.50 
1,223,08 

S0,162.42 

Yea,· ended Ma1·ch 31, Year ended Ma1·ch 31, 
2024 ZOZJ 

713 73 454 9(1 

IV42.~lltl77 1,004 88 
1350 J.1()2'/ 746 05 

l.JO.S 47 713 73 

Year ended Mnrch 31 
33,7 12 00 
27 ,644 00 

H,SKH 00 

3.JJ2.00 
49.356.00 

The fair value at granl dale of oplions granted on May 21, 2020 was Rs 1,596 56. The fair ,•alue al grant dale is determined using the black scholes model, \\hich lakes into accoWll the exercise price, the term or 
option, the share price at grant dale and ex peeled \'Olalilily or the underlying share, lhe expecled di\'idend yield and the risk free in1eresl rale for lhe 1errn of 1he op lion 



Tranche 2 
The fair, alue al grant dale of options granted on April 28, 2021 was Rs 3,350 16. The fair value al grant date is determined using lhe black scholes model , which takes inlo accounl the exercise price, the term of 
option. the share price at grant dale and expected volalilily of lhe underlying share, lhe expected dividend yield and the risk free inleresl rale for lhe lerm of the option 

Tranche 3 
The fair value nl grnnl dale of options granted on April 27, 2022 was Rs 5,093~ 70, The fnir , alue .tl grant dale is delermined using the black scholes model, which takes into account the exercise price, the lerm of 
option, the share price at granl date and expected volatility of the underlying shme, the ex peeled dh idend yield and lhe risk free interest rate for the term of lhe option 

T1·anche 4 
The fair value al grant dale of options granled on August 02, 2022 was Rs 558 14 The fair value al grant dale is determined using the black scholes model, which takes into account lhe exercise price, the term of 
option. the share price al granl date and expected ,•olatilily of the underlying share, the expecled dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for lhe term of Lhe opuon 

Tranche 5 
l11e fair ,,aJue .tl grant dale of options gran1ed on April 27 ,2023 ,vas Rs 444.22 The fair, alue at granl date is determined using the black scholes model, which lakes into account lhe exercise price, the lerm of 

The model inputs for options granted: 
Tranche l Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4 

a) Oplions granted for no consideration and Yesting period is 1-4 yenrs 1-4 years 1-4years 1-4 years 
b) Exercise price Rs 4,702 05 per op lion Rs J0,091 35 per option Rs 14.826 40 per option Rs 15,073 , 1 per option 
c) Grant dale May2\,2020 Apr 28, 2021 Apr 27, 21122 Aug 112, 2022 

d) Exercise date May 20, 2024 Apr 27, 21125 Apr 26, 2026 AugOl,2026 

e) Share price at grant dale Rs 4,702 05 Rs 10,091 35 14826 4 15,073 10 

I) Expected price volalility of the company's shares: 35 ,56% 34,64% 37 75% 35 30% 

g) Expected dividend yield 0 05% 005% 0.02% 003% 

h) risk free interesl rate 6 35% 5 69% 5 35% 642% 

Expected price volalilil)' is based on historic volalility (based on remaining life of options), adjusted for e.xpected changes to future volatility due lo publicly available informalion 

Note 28 : Contineenl liabilities 
The company has no contingent liabililies in currenl year and previous year. 

Note 29 : Additional Reeulatorv Requh•emenls 

i) Ratios 

Ratio Numerator 

(a) Curren! Ratio Currenl Assets 

(b) Return on Equity Ratio Net Income 

(c) Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue 

(d) Trade payables turnover ratio Purchnses 
(e) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue 

(I) Net profit ratio Net profit 

(g) Relum on Capital employed Earning before inleresl and tax 

(h) Relum on inveslment Earning before interest and tax 

ii) Relationship with struck oIT companies 
C111TI' nf 'l"JII ' 

Ntm11) of struck oIT Company Nature or tl'ansactions wilh 
sf1•11d,-,arr com 1/IU'V 

Nnmt or struck oIT Company 

NII, 

Nature or transactions with 
, 11·11( U-01T comrn11,• 

NIL 

Denominntor 

Current Liabilities 

Shareholder's Equity 

Average accounts recei, able 

Average accounts payable 
Working Capital 

Net sales 

Capital employed 

AYerage Operaling assets 

Balance outstanding 

Bah1nce outstnnding 

Peiiod ended March 31 . 
2024 

I 25 

(I 03) 

20 94 

13 48 
14 81 

(1125) 

(I 70) 

(I 24) 

Relalionship with the 
struck oIT com rnnv 

Relationship with the 
JUt•url olT CftUI J i:\ 11\'. 

As at 31st Mnrch, 2023 % Variance 

0,82 52% 

(2 71) 62% 

12 20 72% 

8,06 67% 
(11 24) 232% 

(1.04) 76% 

(2 25) 24% 

(! 38) -10% 

Tranche 5 
1-4 ;rears 
Rs 1334 65 per oplion 
April 27, 2023 
April 27, 2027 
1,359 28 
3806% 
006% 
693% 

Explnnntion 

Increase in investments 
has resulted in lhe 
Improvement of the ratio 
Improved margins 
leading improvement in 
Full payment mode 
collection sales increased 
leading lo lower ratio 

Increased revenue 
leading change in ratio 
Improved margins 
leading improvement in 
Jmproved margins 
leading improvement in 
Jmproved margins 
leading improvement in 

iii) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company lo or in any other person(s) or enlily(ies), including 
foreign entities ("lnlermediaries'"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. lhat the lnlennediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or prm ide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries 

i,) no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entities ('·Funding Parties"), with the understanding, ,\ hether recorded in writing or otherwise, I hat the Company 
shall, whelher, direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in olher persons or entities identified in ony manner whatsoever by or on behalf of lhe Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries'') or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

As per our report of even date 

For KKC & Associales LLP 
Chartered Accounlanls 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
ICAl Firm Regislration Number: 105146W/W I 00621 

Soorej Kombahl 
Partner 
ICAI Membership Number: 164366 
Punc: 

Date- 23 04 ,21124 

On behalf of lhe Board of Directors 
B1U:\I l'inn:n lh,~n.llh Llnuh .. -d 
CIN - u~~J20nN20 1~r LC' IR528(, .A/ 
~ ¼~,-

Devang Mody V Rajagopalan 
Direclor 
DIN:07794726 

Maneesh Sharma 
Finance Head 
Dale- 23 04 2024 

Director 
DIN:02997795 
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